
Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, August 7,  2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 31, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,251,144.07 For The Period Ending July 20, 2024 Through July 26, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 20, 2024 - JUL 26, 2024.PDF

(2) Authorize City Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor To Sign All 
Necessary Documents And Agreements With The US Department Of Justice, Bureau Of 
Justice Assistance, Regarding The Application, Acceptance, And Utilization Of The BJA FY 
24 Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant, In The Amount Of $1,000,000.

BJA FY24 FIELD INITIATED ENCOURAGING INNOVATION GRANT.PDF

(3) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 4 To Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-
00052 With The Washington State Department Of Ecology.

DOE-PGB OUTFALLS WQ RETROFIT-AMENDMENT.PDF

(4) Authorize Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor Or Mayor ’s Designee 
To Sign All Necessary And Required Documents To Accept The Gary Sinise Foundation 
First Responder Outreach Program Grant.

GARY SINISE FOUNDATION GRANT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The 2024 Mukilteo Water And Wastewater District 
Biosolids Storage Agreement. 

MUKILTEO WATER AND WASTEWATER DISTRICT-BIOSOLIDS STORAGE 
AGREEMENT.PDF

(6) Accept The Water Main Replacement “W” Project As Complete And Authorize The 
Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

QUILCEDA EXCAVATION-WATER MAIN W-FINAL.PDF

(7) Adopt A Resolution Accepting Policy Updates To The Policy Relating To Compliance 
With The Public Records Act, As Established By Resolution No. 7026.

RESOLUTION - UPDATE TO PRA POLICY.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(8) CB 2407-15 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special 
Improvement Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 
042.

CB 2407-14.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, August 7,  2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 31, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,251,144.07 For The Period Ending July 20, 2024 Through July 26, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 20, 2024 - JUL 26, 2024.PDF

(2) Authorize City Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor To Sign All 
Necessary Documents And Agreements With The US Department Of Justice, Bureau Of 
Justice Assistance, Regarding The Application, Acceptance, And Utilization Of The BJA FY 
24 Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant, In The Amount Of $1,000,000.

BJA FY24 FIELD INITIATED ENCOURAGING INNOVATION GRANT.PDF

(3) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 4 To Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-
00052 With The Washington State Department Of Ecology.

DOE-PGB OUTFALLS WQ RETROFIT-AMENDMENT.PDF

(4) Authorize Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor Or Mayor ’s Designee 
To Sign All Necessary And Required Documents To Accept The Gary Sinise Foundation 
First Responder Outreach Program Grant.

GARY SINISE FOUNDATION GRANT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The 2024 Mukilteo Water And Wastewater District 
Biosolids Storage Agreement. 

MUKILTEO WATER AND WASTEWATER DISTRICT-BIOSOLIDS STORAGE 
AGREEMENT.PDF

(6) Accept The Water Main Replacement “W” Project As Complete And Authorize The 
Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

QUILCEDA EXCAVATION-WATER MAIN W-FINAL.PDF

(7) Adopt A Resolution Accepting Policy Updates To The Policy Relating To Compliance 
With The Public Records Act, As Established By Resolution No. 7026.

RESOLUTION - UPDATE TO PRA POLICY.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(8) CB 2407-15 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special 
Improvement Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 
042.

CB 2407-14.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://everettwa.gov/speakerform
mailto:aely@everettwa.gov


Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, August 7,  2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 31, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,251,144.07 For The Period Ending July 20, 2024 Through July 26, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 20, 2024 - JUL 26, 2024.PDF

(2) Authorize City Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor To Sign All 
Necessary Documents And Agreements With The US Department Of Justice, Bureau Of 
Justice Assistance, Regarding The Application, Acceptance, And Utilization Of The BJA FY 
24 Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant, In The Amount Of $1,000,000.

BJA FY24 FIELD INITIATED ENCOURAGING INNOVATION GRANT.PDF

(3) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 4 To Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-
00052 With The Washington State Department Of Ecology.

DOE-PGB OUTFALLS WQ RETROFIT-AMENDMENT.PDF

(4) Authorize Staff To Apply For And If Awarded Authorize The Mayor Or Mayor ’s Designee 
To Sign All Necessary And Required Documents To Accept The Gary Sinise Foundation 
First Responder Outreach Program Grant.

GARY SINISE FOUNDATION GRANT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The 2024 Mukilteo Water And Wastewater District 
Biosolids Storage Agreement. 

MUKILTEO WATER AND WASTEWATER DISTRICT-BIOSOLIDS STORAGE 
AGREEMENT.PDF

(6) Accept The Water Main Replacement “W” Project As Complete And Authorize The 
Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

QUILCEDA EXCAVATION-WATER MAIN W-FINAL.PDF

(7) Adopt A Resolution Accepting Policy Updates To The Policy Relating To Compliance 
With The Public Records Act, As Established By Resolution No. 7026.

RESOLUTION - UPDATE TO PRA POLICY.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(8) CB 2407-15 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special 
Improvement Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 
042.

CB 2407-14.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://everettwa.gov/citycouncil
http://youtube.com/everettcity
mailto:Council@everettwa.gov
https://www.everettwa.gov/6d43cce5-3217-46b7-8e49-4d68c35a9f47


Be it Resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

Fund Department Amount Fund Department  Amount 

002 General Government 10,590.76 101 Parks & Recreation 1,806.68
003 Legal 119,772.82 110 Library 10,280.03
005 Municipal Court 4,852.69 112 Community Theater 104,846.00
009 Misc Financial Funds 99,737.87 120 Public Works-Streets 650.00
018 Communications, Mktg & Engagement 675.00 130 Develop & Const Permit Fees 28,972.40
024 Public Works-Engineering 20,825.72 145 Real Property Acquisition 19,928.32
030 Emergency Management 7,143.50 146 Property Management 9,636.86
032 Fire 1,420.00 148 Cum Reserve-Parks 166.82

151 Fund for Animals 55.00
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 265,018.36$      152 Cum Reserve-Library 4,394.52

153 Emergency Medical Services 2,739.36
155 Capital Reserve Fund 355,611.52
156 Criminal Justice 3,786.21
162 Capital Projects Reserve 3,610.84
197 CHIP Loan Program 39,923.07
336 Water & Sewer Sys Improv Project 328,270.36
342 City Facilities Contruction 0.15
354 Parks Capital Construction 98,212.77
401 Public Works-Utilities 344,942.03
402 Solid Waste Utility 932.10
425 Public Works-Transit 59,368.83
430 Everpark Garage 2,064.02
440 Golf 39,961.57
501 MVD-Transportation Services 148,227.72
503 Self-Insurance 66,716.96
505 Computer Reserve 187,483.85
507 Telecommunications 5,492.28
508 Health Benefits 2,592.10
637 Police Pension 51,128.29
638 Fire Pension 61,775.05
665 Other Special Agency Funds 2,550.00

TOTAL CLAIMS 2,251,144.07$     
Councilperson introducing Resolution

Passed and approved this ________day of ________________  , 2024

Council President

Whereas the claims payable by check against the City of Everett for the period Jul 20, 2024 through Jul 26, 2024, 

having been audited and approved by the proper officers, have been paid and the disbursements made by the same, 

against the proper funds in payment thereof, as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. __________



 

                                                                                                                                                                                

  

  

    

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: DOJ, BJA FY 24 Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant  

Council Bill # interoffice use  
 

Project: Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant 

Partner/Supplier: US Dept. Of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

                    Location: Everett, WA 

Preceding action:  N/A 

Fund: 031/Police, 156/Criminal Justice 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                   08/07/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes      X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
x Yes   No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Police, Legal, Procurement  
 

Contact person: 
Jeff Hendrickson  
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8550 
 

Email: 
jhendrickson@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
JD 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The Everett Police Department is requesting to apply for the Bureau of Justice 
Assistance, Field Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant in the amount of $1,000,000.  
There is no Federal match, and there would need to be a budget amendment. 
Project summary statement: 

This is a request to apply for a Bureau of Justice Assistance grant for a total of 
$1,000,000 over the next three years for a community lead violence interruption 
program. A portion of the funds would be passed through to a trusted community 
partner to implement a violence interruption program for young people who are at-risk. 
Another portion of the funds would be used to obtain technology that would detect 
gunshots in the community. This technology would be used to increase the identification 
of persons involved in gun violence and those around them to divert appropriate 
individuals into the program described above. A research partner will be identified to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the program and develop materials to potentially replicate 
this project to other communities.  

There will be no city funds required for this project beyond staff time.    

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize city staff to apply for and if awarded authorize the Mayor to sign all necessary 
documents and agreements with the US Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice 
Assistance, regarding the application, acceptance, and utilization of the BJA FY 24 Field 
Initiated: Encouraging Innovation Grant, in the amount of $1,000,000. 

 

 

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  
Authorize Additional Ecology Funding to Grant Agreement for Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality 
Treatment Retrofit Project   

Council Bill #  
 

Consideration: Amendment to Grant Agreement 

Project: Port Gardner Bay (PGB) Outfalls Water Quality (WQ) Treatment Retrofit 
Project 

Partner/Supplier:  Washington State Department of Ecology 

                    Location:  City of Everett 

Preceding action:  
Authorization to sign Amendment No. 1 – 10/20/21 
Authorization to sign Amendment No. 2 – 2/1/23 
Authorization to sign Amendment No. 3 – 12/13/23 

Fund:  336 – Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                   08/07/24 
Action  
Ordinance  
Public hearing 
 Yes  X  No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X  No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X  No 

 

Attachments: 
Amendment No. 4 to 
Agreement WQC-2019-
EverPW-00052 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works  
 

Contact person: 
Grant Moen  
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8947  
 

Email: 
gmoen@everettwa.gov  
 

Initialed by: 
 RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:   

The funding source for this project will be a WA State Department of Ecology (Ecology) 
grant and local matching funds from Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for the project is $1,400,000. 

Amendment No. 4 is for additional funding awarded by Ecology and increasing the 
agreement total eligible cost from $1,177,030.67 to $1,211,783.67. 

 

 
Project summary statement: 

The PGB Outfalls WQ Treatment Retrofit Project involved the construction of four 
Modular Wetlands stormwater treatment units along outfalls in the vicinity of West 
Marine View Drive, which have now been completed. The City requested additional 
grant funding from Ecology to reimburse unanticipated project costs due to additional 
required cultural resources processes during construction. Ecology has agreed to grant 
additional funding in the amount of $34,753.00. These additional funds will not require 
a recipient match.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):   

Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-
00052 with the Washington State Department of Ecology.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/12792?fileID=78190
https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/14995?fileID=85223
https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/16317?fileID=91345


AMENDMENT NO. 4

TO AGREEMENT NO. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

BETWEEN

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

AND

CITY OF EVERETT

PURPOSE:  To amend the above-referenced agreement (AGREEMENT) between the state of Washington Department  of 

Ecology (ECOLOGY) and City of Everett (RECIPIENT) for the Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit 

(PROJECT).

 

Additional funding has been awarded to this agreement due to cultural resource findings at one of the project sites. This 

amendment is needed to increase the agreement Total Eligible Cost in the amount of $34,753.00, from $1,177,030.67 to 

$1,211,783.67. This amendment will also formally redistribute $320.20 from Task 1 to Task 2, and $15,293.41 from Task 1 

to Task 3. 

1)  The budget in Funding Distribution EG190416 is adjusted as follows: 

Task 1 is reduced by $15,613.61, from $24,000.00 to $8,386.39.

Task 2 is increased by $320.20, from $36,000.00 to $36,320.20.

Task 3 is increased by $15,293.41, from $24,500.00 to $39,793.41.

2)  Additional Stormwater Financial Assistance Program (SFAP) funds of $34,753.00 are added through the funding 

distribution EG250009 (SFAP - Cultural Resources) to Task 3 Construction Management. The new total for Task 3 

Construction Management is $74,546.41.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED that the AGREEMENT is amended as follows:

Total Cost:

Original:  1,177,030.67   Amended:  1,211,783.67

Total Eligible Cost:

Original:  1,177,030.67   Amended:  1,211,783.67

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 2 of 9

CHANGES TO THE BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG250009

Title: SFAP - SFY19

Type: State

Funding Source %: 100%

Description: Environmental Legacy Stewarship Account (ELSA) - State

Fund: FD

Approved Indirect Costs Rate:

Recipient Match %:  

InKind Interlocal Allowed:

InKind Other Allowed:

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   

Approved State Indirect: 30%

0%

No

No

No

Funding Title:

Funding Expiration Date:
Funding Type:

Funding Source:

Funding Effective Date:

SFAP - Cultural Resources
Grant
07/01/2018 06/30/2024

SFAP - Cultural Resources Task Total

Construction Management $ 34,753.00

Total:  34,753.00$

CHANGES TO THE BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG190416

Funding Title:

Funding Expiration Date:
Funding Type:

Funding Source:

Funding Effective Date:

SFAP
Grant
07/01/2018 06/30/2024

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 3 of 9

Title: SFAP - SFY19

Type: State

Funding Source %: 100%

Description: Environmental Legacy Stewarship Account (ELSA) - State

Fund: FD

Approved Indirect Costs Rate:

Recipient Match %:  

InKind Interlocal Allowed:

InKind Other Allowed:

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   

Approved State Indirect: 30%

25%

No

No

No

SFAP Task Total

Project Administration/Management $ 8,386.39

Design Plans and Specs, Environmental Review $ 36,320.20

Construction Management $ 39,793.41

Construction $ 1,092,530.67

Total:  1,177,030.67$

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $8,386.39

Task Title: Project Administration/Management

Task Description:

A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements. 

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:  maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for reimbursement and 

corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and a recipient closeout report (including photos).    

 

B. The RECIPIENT shall maintain documentation demonstrating compliance with applicable procurement, contracting, and 

interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, and compliance with all required permits, licenses, easements, or 

property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items.

C. The RECIPIENT shall manage the project.  Efforts include, but are not limited to:  conducting, coordinating, and scheduling 

project activities and assuring quality control.  Every effort will be made to maintain effective communication with the 

RECIPIENT's designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions; and any interested individuals or 

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 4 of 9

groups.  The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates outlined in this agreement.

Task Goal Statement:

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY’s grant or loan administrative requirements.

Task Expected Outcome:

* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports, and RECIPIENT closeout report.

* Properly maintained project documentation

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

1.1 Quarterly Progress Reports

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report

1.3 Project Outcome Summary Report

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 5 of 9

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $36,320.20

Task Title: Design Plans and Specs, Environmental Review

Task Description:

Task Goal Statement:

Task Expected Outcome:

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 6 of 9

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

2.1 Copy of SEPA determination documentation. Upload to EAGL and 

notify Ecology when upload is complete.

2.2 Submit ECOLOGY 05-05/106 Form and any supplemental cultural 

resources documentation including Cultural Resource surveys directly to 

the Ecology Project Manager.  Upload the Final Determination Letter to 

EAGL.

2.3 Inadvertent Discovery Plan. Upload to EAGL and notify Ecology when 

upload is complete.

2.4 Design Report. Upload to EAGL and notify Ecology when upload is 

complete.

2.5 Responses to Ecology Design Report Comments. Upload to EAGL and 

notify Ecology when upload is complete.

2.6 Ecology Design Report Acceptance Letter. Upload to EAGL and notify 

Ecology when upload is complete.

2.7 90 Percent Design Package. Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY 

when upload is complete.

2.8 Reponses to Ecology 90 percent Design Plan comments. Upload to 

EAGL and notify Ecology when upload is complete.

2.9 Ecology 90 percent Design Acceptance letter. Upload to EAGL and 

notify Ecology when upload is complete.

2.10 List of permits acquired, and environmental review documents. Upload 

to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY when upload is complete.

2.11 Final Bid Package. Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY when 

upload is complete.

2.12 Ecology Final Bid Package Acceptance Letter. Upload to EAGL and 

notify ECOLOGY when upload is complete.

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 7 of 9

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 3 Task Cost: $74,546.41

Task Title: Construction Management

Task Description:

A.  The RECIPIENT will provide construction oversight and management of the project.

B.  The RECIPIENT will submit a detailed construction quality assurance plan to ECOLOGY for review and acceptance 

before the start of construction. This plan must describe how the RECIPIENT will perform adequate and competent 

construction oversight.  Once accepted by Ecology, upload to EAGL. 

C.  The RECIPIENT will conduct a pre-construction conference meeting and invite ECOLOGY to attend.

D.  The RECIPIENT will submit an updated project schedule with projected cash flow to ECOLOGY within 30 days of the 

start of construction. The RECIPIENT will revise and/or update the project schedule whenever major changes occur and at a 

minimum of every three months. The RECIPIENT will submit the updated schedule to ECOLOGY with the quarterly report. 

When changes in the construction schedule affect previous cash flow estimates, The RECIPIENT must submit revised cash 

flow projections to ECOLOGY.

E.  Prior to execution, the RECIPIENT will submit in writing any eligible change orders that are a significant deviation from 

ECOLOGY-accepted plans and specifications for ECOLOGY review and acceptance for payment. ECOLOGY must review 

and accept all change orders that impact grant eligible activities prior to implementation. ECOLOGY must review all other 

change orders for technical merit and should be submitted within 30 days after execution. Change orders are to be signed by 

the contractor, the engineer (if appropriate), and the RECIPIENT prior to submittal to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

F.  The RECIPIENT will operate and maintain the constructed facility for the design life of the facility. Additionally, the 

RECIPIENT will develop and submit an operations and maintenance (O&M) plan for all Water Quality Best Management 

Practices to ECOLOGY for review. The O&M plan will describe how the RECIPIENT will ensure project success consistent 

with the design manual used. The O&M plan must also address long-term activities to assure ongoing pollutant removal and 

flow-control capability of the project in accordance with the design manual. 

G.  Upon completion of construction, the RECIPIENT will provide to ECOLOGY:

1.  A Stormwater Construction Completion Form signed by a professional engineer indicating that the project was completed 

in accordance with the plans and specifications and major change orders approved by ECOLOGY’s Project Engineer and 

shown on the Record Drawings. The Stormwater Construction Completion Form can be found on the ECOLOGY website. 

2.  GIS compatible project area in Shapefile, Geodatabase file, or ECOLOGY-Approved Equivalent. The project area should 

include features for treatment facilities and contributing areas.

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 8 of 9

Task Goal Statement:

The RECIPIENT will oversee and manage construction, communicate with ECOLOGY in a timely fashion, and provide 

ECOLOGY with all requested project documentation.

Task Expected Outcome:

Project will be constructed on schedule and in accordance with accepted plans.

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

3.1 Construction Quality Assurance Plan. Submit to ECOLOGY for review 

and acceptance.  Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY when upload 

is complete.

3.2 Pre-construction conference meeting minutes. Upload to EAGL and 

notify Ecology when upload is complete.

3.3 Project Schedule. Upload to EAGL using naming convention D3.3 

SCHEDULE MO-DA-YEAR and notify Ecology when upload is 

complete.

3.4 Revised Cash Flow Estimates when changes in construction schedule 

occur. Upload to EAGL using naming convention D3.4 CASHFLOW 

MO-DA-YEAR and notify Ecology when upload is complete.

3.5 Change Order(s). Upload to EAGL and notify Ecology when upload is 

complete.

3.6 Copy of Facility Operation and Maintenance Plan. Submit to 

ECOLOGY for review and acceptance.  Upload to EAGL and notify 

ECOLOGY when upload is complete.

3.7 Stormwater Construction Completion Form. Upload to EAGL and notify 

Ecology when upload is complete.

3.8 Project Area Shapefile, Geodatabase file, or ECOLOGY-approved 

Equivalent. The project area should include features for treatment 

facilities and contributing areas. Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY 

when upload is complete.

Template Version 10/30/2015



State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Everett

Port Gardner Bay Outfalls Water Quality Treatment Retrofit Project

Agreement No. WQC-2019-EverPW-00052

Page 9 of 9

Funding Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match % Recipient Share Ecology Share Total

SFAP 25 % $ $ $294,257.67 882,773.00 1,177,030.67

SFAP - Cultural Resources 0 % $ $ $0.00 34,753.00 34,753.00

Total 294,257.67 917,526.00 $$$ 1,211,783.67

Template Version 10/30/2015



 

                                                                                                                                                                                

  

  

    

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: Gary Sinise Foundation First Responder Outreach Program Grant 

Council Bill # interoffice use  
 

Project: RIT Pack replacement 

Partner/Supplier: Gary Sinise Foundation (GSF), Scott Fire & Safety 

                    Location: N/A 

Preceding action:  N/A 

Fund: 032 Fire 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent   08/07/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes      X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Grant Application 
Scott RIT pack information 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Fire 
 

Contact person: 
Dave DeMarco 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8101 
 

Email: 
DDeMarco@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
This grant would provide the city with firefighting equipment at a value of approximately 
$60,000. Upon award, the grantor would purchase requested equipment. 

 

Project summary statement: 

Grantor would purchase eleven new 3M Scott Rapid Intervention Team (RIT)-Pak emergency air-
supply kits. Each of Everett’s eleven fire engines carries a RIT kit used for firefighter rescue. The 
kit is specifically designed to deliver additional breathing air to trapped firefighters. Existing kits 
are near end of life and planned for replacement in 2025.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize staff to apply for and if awarded authorize the Mayor or Mayor’s designee to sign all 
necessary and required documents to accept the Gary Sinise Foundation First Responder 
Outreach Program Grant. 

 

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

























                                                                                                                                                                                
 

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  2024 Mukilteo Water & Wastewater District Biosolids Storage Agreement  

Council Bill #  
 

Project: Biosolids 

Partner/Supplier: Public Works 

                    Location: Everett Water Pollution Control Facility 

Preceding action:  n/a 

Fund: 401 – Water and Sewer Utility 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                   08/07/24 
Action  
Ordinance  
Public hearing 
 Yes  x No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  x No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  x No 

 

Attachments: 
License Agreement 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works 
 

Contact person: 
Jeff Marrs 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8967 
 

Email: 
jmarrs@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:   
If this agreement is activated, total revenue of this agreement is $750. 

 
Project summary statement: 

The City previously had an agreement with Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District 
(MWWD) authorizing the use of Everett’s biosolids pad as an emergency storage 
location. MWWD transports their biosolids across the Cascade Mountains, which may be 
closed or prohibit travel by its hauler during the winter months. The previous agreement 
expired on June 30, 2024. 

The 2024 agreement is a 1-year agreement that will continue to allow MWWD to 
temporarily store their biosolids on a 30-40 square foot are of Everett’s Biosolids pad at 
the Water Pollution Control Facility for emergency biosolids storage for a maximum of 
30 days. MWWD is approved to store solids on City property and will pay the City $750 if 
this agreement is activated. 

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):   
Authorize the Mayor to sign the 2024 Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District Biosolids 
Storage Agreement.    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e   

LICENSE TO USE CITY PROPERTY FOR TEMPORARY BIOSOLIDS STORAGE 

("LICENSE AGREEMENT") 

Grantor: City of Everett 

 
Grantee:  Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District 

Property: See attached Exhibit A 

 
WHEREAS, Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District, hereinafter referenced to as 

"MUKILTEO," and whose address is 7824 Mukilteo Speedway, WA 98275, desires to utilize City 

of Everett (the "City") owned property for the purposes hereinafter set forth; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant MUKILTEO authority to use the City's property in 

exchange for the fees described below. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the promises contained herein, and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby expressly 

acknowledged, the City licenses MUKILTEO to use certain City property, and MUKILTEO agrees 

to pay the City, upon 30 days of receipt of invoice, upon the following terms and conditions: 

 
1. LICENSED PROPERTY /USE NOTICE/FEES. The property subject to this License 

Agreement is described on Exhibit A. The property described on Exhibit A is referred to 

in this License Agreement as the "Biosolids Pad." 

 
MUKILTEO may use the Biosolids Pad where designated by the City for biosolids storage 

from time to time. Prior to each such use, MUKILTEO must provide the City 24 hours 

prior notice, as described in Exhibit B. By such notice, Mukilteo agrees to pay a use fee 

of $750, which will allow biosolids storage for up to 30 calendar days, with the 30-day 

count beginning on the date that MUKILTEO gives the notice. Unless otherwise 

determined by the City at the City's sole discretion, MUKILTEO must remove all 

MUKILTEO biosolids from the Biosolids Pad by the end of such 30 days. There will be no 

proration or other refund if the MUKILTEO biosolids are on the Biosolids Pad for less 

than 30 days. 

 
2. TERM. This License Agreement shall take effect upon signing by both parties and shall 

expire June 30, 2025, unless terminated earlier upon 30-days' notice under Section 7, 

below. 

  



2 | P a g e   

3. AUTHORIZED USE. MUKILTEO may only use the Biosolids Pad for temporary storage of 

MUKILTEO's biosolids. All use of the Biosolids Pad must be in accordance with Exhibit B. 

4. BIOSOLIDS STORAGE. At its sole cost, MUKILTEO shall transport and manage all biosolids 

in accordance with all applicable laws and Exhibit B. MUKILTEO has sole responsibility for 

MUKILTEO's biosolids, including without limitation all responsibility for biosolids 

transportation, storage, and reuse. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION. To the maximum extent permitted by law and except to the extent 

caused by the sole negligence of the City, MUKILTEO shall defend, indemnify, and hold 

the City harmless from any and all Claims, including without limitation Claims for injury 

to people or damage to property, arising out of or related to (A) MUKILTEO's use of the 

Biosolids Pad, {B) any biosolids or any other material delivered to the Biosolids Pad by 

MUKILTEO, {C} any failure by MUKILTEO to transport, store, treat or dispose of biosolids 

or any other material in accordance with Exhibit Band all applicable laws or {D) any 

release by MUKILTEO of biosolids or another material. This defense and 

indemnification obligation shall survive any termination, revocation, or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

For the purposes of this Section 5: 

A. "City" means the City, its officers, employees and agents. 

B. "MUKILTEO" means, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, and 

subcontractors. 

C. "Claims" means any loss, injury, demand, settlement, or lawsuit {including 

without limitation those based on environmental laws and regulations) and 

further includes any and all reasonable litigation costs such as attorney's fees, 

expert fees and costs, and court costs. 

D. "Injury to people" includes, but is not limited to, bodily injury and death. 

E.  "Damage to property" includes, but is not limited to, damage or injury to any City 

property, including the Biosolids Pad, any City facilities, and any property owned 

by third parties. 

F. "Release" shall have the meaning that it has under RCW 70.105D.020{25}. 

 
Solely and expressly for the purpose of its duties to indemnify and defend the City, 

MUKILTEO specifically waives any immunity it may have under the State Industrial 

Insurance Law, Title 51 RCW. MUKILTEO recognizes that this waiver of immunity under Title 

51 RCW was specifically entered into pursuant to the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 and was 

the subject of mutual negotiation. 

 
6. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. MUKILTEO shall not place any materials on the Biosolids Pad or 

cause any materials to be transported onto any other property owned by the City that are 

classified as hazardous or dangerous under the Washington Model Toxic Control Act. 

Breach of this provision shall be considered "damage to property" for the purposes of 

Section 5, above. 

  



3 | P a g e   

7. TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this License Agreement upon thirty (30) 

days prior written notice to other party. 

 
8. NOTICE. For the purposes of this License Agreement, the Agreement Administrators are: 

Operations Superintendent Jeff Marrs or designee for the City; and General Manager 

Dave Barnes or designee for MUKILTEO. Notices sent pursuant to this License 

Agreement shall be sent to the Agreement Administrators at the following addresses: 

CITY OF EVERETT 

Attn: Operations Superintendent 

Everett Public Works 

3200 Cedar Street 

Everett, Washington 98201 

 
MUKILTEO 

Attn: General Manager 7824 

Mukilteo Speedway 

Mukilteo, Washington 98275 

 
9. NO ASSIGNMENT. This License Agreement is personal to MUKILTEO and may not be 

transferred, assigned, conveyed, pledged, encumbered, or hypothecated. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. MUKILTEO shall comply with all applicable local, State, and 

Federal regulations and laws. 

11. INSURANCE. MUKILTEO shall, throughout the term of this License Agreement, at its own 

expense, keep and maintain in full force and effect the following policy, which shall be 

endorsed as needed to provide that the insurance afforded by the policy is primary and that 

all insurance or self-insured retention carried or maintained by the City is strictly excess and 

secondary and shall not contribute with MUKILTEO's liability insurance: 

 
A policy of commercial general liability insurance insuring against claims of bodily 

injury and death or property damage or loss with a combined single limit at the 

Effective Date of this License Agreement of not less than Two Million Dollars 

($2,000,000.00) per occurrence. MUKILTEO shall include the City as an additional 

insured. 

 
The insurance policy required under this Section shall be with companies having a rating 

according to Best's Insurance Key Rating Guide for Property - Casualties of no less than A- 

Class VIII. The policy shall provide that it is not subject to cancellation, lapse, or 

 

reduction in coverage except after thirty (30) days' written notice to the City. MUKILTEO shall 

deliver to the City, prior to the commencement of its use of the Biosolids Pad and from time 

to time thereafter, at the City's request, certificates evidencing the existence and amounts of 

such policy and copies of such insurance policy. 

  



4 | P a g e   

12. NON-INTERFERENCE WITH CITY USE. MUKILTEO's use of the Biosolids Pad shall not 

interfere in any way with any City, or authorized third party, use of the property, 

including utilities and travel. 

 
13. VACANT. 

 
14. REPAIR OF PROPERTY. MUKILTEO shall use care to avoid damaging or destroying 

property by reason of its operations pursuant to this License Agreement. Any damage 

caused by MUKILTEO to City or other property shall be promptly repaired or replaced 

by MUKILTEO to the satisfaction of the City, or in lieu of such repair or replacement, 

MUKILTEO shall pay, to the City or owner of other property, money in an amount 

sufficient to compensate for the loss sustained by reason of damage to or destruction of 

the City's or another party's property or improvements. 

15. RISK OF LOSS TO MUKILTEO'S PROPERTY. MUKILTEO bears all risk of any and all damage 

and loss to its property being stored on the site. All biosolids delivered to the Biosolids 

Pad under this License Agreement are the property of MUKILTEO. 

16. VACANT. 

 
17. NO WARRANTY. The City does not warrant its title and ownership of the Biosolids 

Pad. 

 
18. NON-EXCLUSIVE. This License Agreement is not exclusive. The City is not prohibited 

from granting permission to others to occupy or use portions of the Biosolids Pad, where 

such uses are not inconsistent with this License Agreement. 

19. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS. The City reserves all rights not expressly restricted by this 

License Agreement. 

20. NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS. This License Agreement does not create any rights in any 

third party. 

21. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. The laws of the State of Washington shall apply to 

this License Agreement. Venue for any lawsuit arising out of or related to this License 

Agreement shall be in Snohomish County Superior Court, Washington. 

  



5 | P a g e   

I 

Grantor: 

CITY OF EVERETT 

 

By __________________________ 
 Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
Dated _________________ 
 
ATTEST:  

 

By __________________________ 
 City Clerk 

 

Dated _________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By __________________________ 
 City Attorney  

 

Dated _________________ 



6 | P a g e   

I 

LICENSE AGREEMENT, TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED BY: 
 

Grantee: 

MUKILTEO WATER AND WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 
By __________________________ 
  Dave Barnes, General Manager 
 
Dated _________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By __________________________ 
 District Counsel 
 
Dated _________________ 

  



7 | P a g e   

EXHIBIT A 
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT AREA 
(Biosolids Pad) 

 
Section 16 Township 29 Range OS Quarter NE - NE¼ TGW NW¼ SE¼ & SW¼ SE¼ & TGW THAT PTN 

GOVT LOTS 1 & 4 IN NW¼ LYE OF SR 1 & TGW TH PTN GOVT LOTS 8 & 11 IN SW¼ LYE OF SR 1 & 

TGW GOVT LOTS 6 & 12 IN SE ¼ 

  



8 | P a g e   

EXHIBIT B 

 

BIOSOLIDS TEMPORARY STAGING PLAN 

 
A. MUKILTEO must notify the City of its intent to use the Biosolids Pad at least 24 hours in 

advance of hauling material to the Biosolids Pad. Once that notification is sent, payment to 

the City as set forth in the License Agreement is required, regardless of whether 

MUKILTEO uses the Biosolids Pad or not. Notification will be sent via email to the 

Operations Superintendent, Plant Manager, Senior Wastewater Operator, and Biosolids 

Manager, as well as by phone to the Senior Wastewater Operator or representative: 

 
Operations Superintendent  

Jeff Marrs 

jmarrs@everettwa.gov 

 
Plant Manager  

John Smit 

jsmit@everettwa.gov 

 
Senior Wastewater Operator  

Derek Kerlee 

dkerlee@everettwa.gov 

(425) 257-6790 

 
These may be updated in writing by the City from time to time. 

 
B. Upon receiving notification, the City will designate and prepare an approximately 30 by 40-

foot area on its Biosolids Pad for use by MUKILTEO. This area is large enough to 

temporarily stage five truckloads. Without the written consent of the City's Operations 

Superintendent, MUKILTEO may not use any other part of the Biosolids Pad. 

C. MUKILTEO must provide all appropriate equipment on-site to load biosolids onto their 

trucks for removal. 

D. The source of the biosolids is MUKILTEO's wastewater treatment plant at 7824 Mukilteo 

Speedway, WA 98275. MUKILTEO will cause all biosolids subject to this License 

Agreement to meet all Federal and State regulations for a Class B biosolids as defined in 

40 CFR part 503 and WAC 173-308. MUKILTEO will cause all such biosolids to be at least 

12% total solids. MUKILTEO may not under this License Agreement 

unload, temporarily stage, reload, or haul biosolids that do not comply with this 

Section of Exhibit B. 

E. MUKILTEO will not allow any biosolids to remain on the Biosolids Pad for more than 30 

days from notification, unless otherwise approved by the City at the City's sole 

discretion. The City may, as a condition for such approval, require additional fees. 

  

mailto:jmarrs@everettwa.gov
mailto:jsmit@everettwa.gov


9 | P a g e   

F. MUKILTEO will utilize a dump truck and trailer combination to deliver the biosolids to 

the Biosolids Pad for temporary storage. MUKILTEO will then load truck and trailer 

units to transport the biosolids to MUKILTEO's existing end-use sites for beneficial 

reuse. 

G. Before leaving the Biosolids Pad, MUKILTEO will clean all trucks and trailers of all 

biosolids that may adhere to such vehicles during loading and unloading operations at the 

provided location on the Biosolids Pad. It is MUKILTEO's sole responsibility to promptly 

clean up any biosolids that are deposited on any roadways entering or leaving the 

Biosolids Pad as a result of MUKILTEO's activities. 

H. MUKILTEO is solely responsible for contacting the Snohomish County Public Works 

Department, or other applicable agency, regarding any haul routes to verify constraints 

or restrictions that might apply and complying with all applicable regulations. 

 
I.  MUKILTEO will provide all equipment and personnel necessary to perform this task in a 

safe, reliable, and legally compliant manner. 

 
J. Prior to delivering any biosolids to the Biosolids Pad, MUKILTEO must obtain written 

approval of this License Agreement from the Department of Ecology Biosolids 

Coordinator for the Northwest Region. MUKILTEO will deliver a copy of such written 

approval to the City's Operations Superintendent prior to delivering any biosolids to the 

Biosolids Pad. 

K. In the event nuisance odors are generated, which determination will be made at the 

City's sole discretion, MUKILTEO shall cap the stockpiled biosolids with a 2 to 3-inch 

layer of material (i.e., sawdust or sand) capable of minimizing nuisance odors. The cap 

material will then be deemed part of the biosolids that must be hauled off-site by 

MUKILTEO. If the City determines in its sole discretion that the cap is insufficient to 

minimize odors, MUKILTEO shall haul off-site the biosolids causing the odors within 10 

days after receiving notice from the City. 

L. Within 60 days of the initial notification of intended use of the Biosolids Pad, the City's 

Biosolids Program Manager or designee will confirm by a visual inspection that 

MUKILTEO has substantially removed all materials (including biosolids) MUKILTEO 

deposited on City Property under this License Agreement and that cleanup is satisfactory, 

i.e., the pad surface has been restored to its original condition. The City (Operations 

Superintendent or designee) will notify MUKILTEO in writing of the results of this 

inspection. If further action is necessary, the City will notify MUKILTEO of the time 

frame for further removal and clean up. If MUKILTEO fails to take further action within 

the timeframe specified or provide adequate cause as to why such further action cannot 

be accomplished within the timeframe specified, the City will take the necessary action to 

restore the site to its original condition through any means the City deems necessary. 

All costs associated with these activities will be paid by MUKILTEO. 

  



10 | P a g e   

M. MUKILTEO is responsible for any damage to any City equipment, appurtenance, or 

property caused by its activities at the site and shall schedule and complete repairs as 

soon as possible, at its expense. MUKILTEO will submit a repair schedule to the City's 

Operation Superintendent within 72 hours from the time damage occurred or is initially 

noted by MUKILTEO or City personnel. Any repair work must be pursuant to plans 

acceptable to the City and must be accomplished with parts, materials, and labor 

approved by City personnel. Upon completion of any necessary repairs, MUKILTEO will 

submit a written statement verifying that the repair work has been completed according 

to the approved repair schedule. If the repair work is not acceptable, the City's 

Operations Superintendent may have the repair work performed by City personnel or 

another private entity. All costs for this repair work will be paid by MUKILETO. 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:    Water Main Replacement “W” Project UP-3766. 

Council Bill #   
 

Project: Water Main Replacement “W” 

Partner/Supplier:  Quilceda Excavation, Inc.  

                    Location: Wilmington Avenue from 52nd Street to Evergreen Way; Hoyt Avenue 
from 41st Street to 44th Street                                                                                                             
 
 Preceding action:    Ord 3813-21 7/14/21; Award 6/1/22; Change Order #1 1/31/24 

Fund:  336-Water and Sewer Systems Improvement Utilities Funds 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action   
Consent                   08/07/24 
Action   
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Final pay estimate, final 
contract voucher certificate, 
subcontractor tracking log, 
affidavit of amounts paid DBE 
participants.  
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8809 
 

Email:  
THood@everettwa.gov  
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
Original contract Amount:                            $1,843,150.92 

Final Contract Total:      $1,818,249.08 

 

Project summary statement: 

The project replaced approximately 3,900 feet of aging cast iron water mains that are 
prone to breaking and upsized water mains to provide the required fire suppression 
flow. The project included site restoration, pavement patch, replacement of sidewalks, 
and curb/gutter. 

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 

Accept the Water Main Replacement “W” project as complete and authorize the Mayor 
to sign the Certificate of Completion. 

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/12450?fileID=74744
https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/13827?fileID=81195
https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/16499?fileID=91578
mailto:THood@everettwa.gov














   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Project title: 
A RESOLUTION accepting policy updates to the Policy Relating to Compliance with the Public 
Records Act, as established by Resolution No. 7026 

Council Bill # Project: PRA Policy updates 

Partner/Supplier: N/A 

Location:
N/A 

Preceding action:  Resolution 7026, Ordinance 2367-99 

Fund: 

Agenda dates requested: 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent           08/07/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 

Yes No   X 

Budget amendment: 
Yes No  X 

PowerPoint presentation: 
Yes   No X 

Attachments: 
Resolution 

Department(s) involved: 
Legal, Finance  

Contact person: 
Ramsey Ramerman 

Phone number: 
425-257-7009

Email: 
rramerman@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
  DH 

Department head 

Administration 

Council President 

Fiscal summary statement:  
There is no fiscal impact for this policy updated. 

Project summary statement: 

The City is making clarification edits to our current policy to follow current practices of 
using our online portal, email and other technology standards to provide records and 
provide fullest assistance to requestors.  

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt a Resolution accepting policy updates to the Policy Relating to Compliance 
with the Public Records Act, as established by Resolution No. 7026. 

https://lfportal.everettwa.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=256833&searchid=55069896-f8eb-4eed-9761-1e1fa4840126&dbid=0
https://lfportal.everettwa.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=1709&searchid=84d36b72-a982-4bb1-9f57-5266ab3432cc&dbid=0


 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 
A RESOLUTION accepting policy updates to the Policy Relating to Compliance with the Public 
Records Act, as established by Resolution No. 7026 
 
WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City Council adopted Resolution No. 7026 on September 7, 2016.  
 

B. The City must stay updated with technology changes and additions and edit policies to maintain 
those changes.  

 
C. Most of the City’s Public Records Act requests are provided via our online portal or email.  

 
D. The City is making clarification edits to our current policy to follow current practices of using our 

online portal, email and other technology standards to provide records and provide fullest 
assistance to requestors.  

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE FOLLOWING:  
 
1.0 General  

 
The City is required by Chapter 42.56 RCW (the Public Records Act) to adopt and enforce 
reasonable rules and regulations to provide full access to public records. This policy and procedure 
complies with the requirements of the Public Records Act by providing for consistent and 
predictable practices for responding to and fulfilling requests for public records in a manner 
consistent with the Act.  

 
The policy portion of this document clarifies the City’s goals and intent with respect to providing 
access to public records. The procedure portion of the document describes the process for 
requesting and fulfilling public records requests in keeping with legal requirements.  
 
These policies include statutory requirements and best practices. Nothing in this policy is intended 
to create legal obligations or rights beyond those obligations and rights created by statute or other 
binding laws.  

  



RESOLUTION  Page 2 of 15 

2.0 Definitions 
 

  For the purpose of this policy, the following definitions apply: 
 

2.1 “Accessing a record” means viewing, downloading, inspecting online or in person, 
obtaining copies virtually or in person, and any other possible way a requestor may obtain 
requested records.  
 
2.2  “All records relating to,” “all records regarding,” or “all records pertaining to” means 
those records that directly and fairly address the topics that are reasonably identifiable by the 
Records Liaison fulfilling the request. These phrases are inherently ambiguous and requestors are 
encouraged to avoid using such terms when possible to avoid unnecessary delays.  
 
2.3 “City of Everett” means the City of Everett, Washington. The City of Everett is a general 
purpose governmental entity that provides the full range of municipal services allowed by statute 
or charter. These services include police, fire, emergency medical, street maintenance, planning 
and zoning, libraries, parks and recreation, and general administrative services. In addition to its 
general government services, the City operates five enterprises: water and sewer utility, solid 
waste (recycling) utility, two golf courses, a transit system, and a parking garage.  
 
2.4  “Court records request” means any request for Everett Municipal Court records. Everett 
Municipal Court records are exempt from the Public Records Act and are subject to release 
directly through the Everett Municipal Court under General Rule 31.1.  

 
2.5 “Exempt record” means records or portions of records that are exempt from public 
disclosure. Exemptions include those identified in the Public Records Act or in other statutes 
incorporated by RCW 42.56.070. Exemption from disclosure of a portion of a record does not 
automatically exempt the remainder of the record from disclosure. Exempt portions of records 
may be subject to redaction.  

 
2.6 “Public record” means any writing containing information relating to the conduct of 
government or the performance of any governmental or proprietary function prepared, owned, 
used, or retained by any state or local agency regardless of physical form or characteristics. 
Electronic data, including email, that meet this definition shall be considered a public record. 
Records created or received by employees using non-city devices only meet the definition of 
public record if the employee was acting within the scope of employment when the record was 
created or received.  

 
2.7 “Public records request” means a request made to the City of Everett pursuant to the 
Public Records Act for disclosure of public records. Requests for public records made pursuant to 
other statutory rights of access to public records shall not be considered “public records requests” 
but may be otherwise handled under this policy.  

 
2.8 “Public Records Liaison” and “Records Liaison” means the person or persons designated 
by a department director or designee to accept, track by log, and arrange for fulfillment of 
requests for disclosure of public records within a City department.  



RESOLUTION  Page 3 of 15 

2.9 “Public Records Officer” means the City Clerk or designee.  
 

2.10 “Record holder” means the department or particular staff person in custody of a primary 
record.  

 
2.11 “Requestor” means the individual making the request for public records by submitting an 
official public records request.  
 

3.0 Policy 
     

3.1  General  
 
Public records maintained by the City of Everett are and remain the property of the City.  It is the 
policy of the City of Everett to provide access to public records in accordance with the 
requirements of Chapter 42.56 RCW. Procedures governing access to public records shall ensure 
access to public records without discrimination to requestors and shall provide appropriate 
safeguards for information exempted from or prohibited from disclosure by statute. 
 
In order to fully assist the public in requesting public records, the City shall encourage the use of 
available electronic resources whenever possible for accessing, requesting, and fulfilling requests 
for public information records, including use of email and provision of information on the City’s 
website.  
 
3.2 Public Records Officer 
 
The City Clerk shall serve as the Public Records Officer of the City of Everett. The City Clerk may 
appoint a designee to fulfill the responsibilities of the Public Records Officer.  

 
The Public Records Officer shall oversee compliance with the Public Records Act throughout the 
City by serving as a point of contact for City staff and members of the public seeking access to 
public records; however, not every request must be addressed to the Public Records Officer, nor 
is it intended that every request be reviewed by the Public Records Officer prior to fulfillment. In 
the interest of providing effective access to public records, the Public Records Officer may refer 
parties requesting public records to a department Records Liaison as appropriate.  

 
The Public Records Officer shall maintain a list of department Records Liaisons who are designated 
to accept and fulfill requests for disclosure of public records on a regular basis, and shall provide 
advice and instruction to Records Liaisons and other staff members regarding fulfillment of such 
requests.  

 
The Public Records Officer shall distribute updates on laws, legal precedents, and policy changes 
affecting fulfillment of records requests, as appropriate, and shall approve all forms for requesting 
and responding to requests of public records. 

  



RESOLUTION  Page 4 of 15 

3.3 Public Records Liaisons 
 

There shall be a network of Records Liaisons with representatives in every department of the City 
to assist the public in obtaining access to public records. Each department director shall designate 
at least one Records Liaison and one backup Records Liaison. Each department will inform the 
Public Records Officer of all Records Liaisons and designated backups.  

 
Under the oversight of the Public Records Officer, Records Liaisons may accept requests for public 
records in the possession of their respective departments and may respond to requestors in 
accordance with the requirements of state statutes and this policy and procedure.  

 
In consultation with the Public Records Officer, Record Liaisons may communicate directly with 
requestors, forward requests to other City employees as necessary, compile requested records, 
arrange for the supervised public inspection and copying of requested records, maintain files and 
logs of official requests fulfilled by the department, and provide periodic statistical reporting of 
disclosure activity to the Public Records Officer. 

 
3.4 Police Records  
 
The Police Department is responsible for the coordination, tracking, and fulfillment of requests 
for police records. The Public Records Officer will serve as an advisor to the Police Records 
Liaisons, but will not provide oversight of the fulfillment process.  
 

 3.5 Public Records Requests 
 

Requests for public records should be made in writing. The City shall provide an official form for 
submission of public records requests. Forms for the purpose of requesting public records shall 
be approved by the Public Records Officer for general use by City staff. These forms shall not be 
edited for distribution without the approval of the Public Records Officer. As needed, the Public 
Records Officer may approve alternate request forms that are specialized for request of records 
with unique statutory considerations, such as law enforcement records. 
 
Acceptance of requests by means other than on official forms approved by the Public Records 
Officer shall be in accordance with the procedures outlined in this policy and procedure.  

 
3.6  City Response 

 
Staff shall respond promptly to requests for public records in accordance with the requirements 
of RCW 42.56.520 and this policy and procedure. The deadline for initial response to the records 
request is five (5) business days after receipt of the request. Business days do not include 
weekends and City holidays. 

 
Initial and final responses from staff to official requests for public records shall be made in writing 
and may be by fax, letter, notation on a request form, or email. Staff may ask for clarification of a 
request in order to properly identify the records being requested. Clarification of requests may 
be obtained in writing or verbally.  



RESOLUTION  Page 5 of 15 

All requests for public records shall be afforded the same treatment and consideration, without 
distinction among persons, and without regard to the intent of the request.  

 
To reduce proliferation of paper copies and in the interest of efficiently and expeditiously 
responding to requests for disclosure of public records, the Public Records Officer and Records 
Liaisons are encouraged to use electronic means to respond to, fulfill, and track public records 
requests.  

 
This policy shall not obligate staff to create electronic or other records, or to convert electronic 
records into a format or medium in which the records are not already maintained. When asked 
by a requestor to convert an electronic record into a different format, staff is encouraged to do 
so when reasonable and technologically feasible, provided such conversion is not unduly 
burdensome and does not interfere with other essential City functions. Requestors may request 
paper copies of electronic records subject to applicable copying charges adopted by the City.  

 
Responses to requests of public records, including responses by email, become public records in 
their own right, subject to the provisions of the Public Records Act and the retention requirements 
of the Office of the Secretary of State, and shall be maintained accordingly. 

 
3.7 Exemption 

 
The Public Records Act and other statutes exempt or prohibit disclosure of certain public records. 
It is the policy of the City of Everett to provide prompt and helpful access to all public records in 
the City’s custody that State statutes do not exempt or prohibit from disclosure. Requested 
records may only be withheld or redacted consistent with statutory requirements, which shall be 
documented for the requestor in accordance with the requirements of RCW 42.56.210.  

 
Some public records may contain specific content that is exempt from disclosure. The presence 
of exempt information does not necessarily exempt an entire record from disclosure. Exempt 
portions of an otherwise disclosable record shall be redacted prior to inspection or copying and 
such redactions shall be documented. The requestor shall be notified of the redaction in 
accordance with the requirements of RCW 42.56.210. 

 
The following are summaries of common exemptions relied upon by the City. Note, the City 
reserves the right to assert any exemptions permitted by law when the City determines non-
disclosure serves the public interest and is not limited to the exemptions listed below: 
 

3.7.1  Records that are protected by trade secrets law (RCW 19.108);  
3.7.2 Valuable formulae, designs, drawings, computer source code or object code, and 

research data obtained by the City within five years of the request for disclosure 
when disclosure would produce private gain and public loss (RCW 42.56.270 (1); 

3.7.3 Personal information in files maintained for council members and City employees 
to the extent that disclosure would violate their right to privacy, including but not 
limited to addresses, phone numbers, Social Security numbers, driver license 
numbers, voluntary deductions, marriage status, information about dependents, 
and any garnishment deductions (RCW 42.56.230(3) & .250(3)); 



RESOLUTION  Page 6 of 15 

3.7.4 Preliminary drafts, recommendations, and intra-agency memoranda in which 
opinions are expressed or policies formulated or recommended, except that a 
specific record shall not be exempt when publicly cited by the City in connection 
with any City action (RCW 42.56.280); 

3.7.5 All applications for public employment, including the names of applicants, 
resumes, and other related materials submitted with respect to an applicant 
(RCW 42.56.250(1)); 

3.7.6 Records in investigative files, including police and code enforcement 
investigations, to the extent that nondisclosure is essential for effective law 
enforcement or for the protection of any person’s right to privacy (RCW 
42.56.240(1));  

3.7.7 Identifying information for victims or witnesses of crimes under certain 
circumstances (RCW 42.56.240(2) & (5));  

3.7.8 Records created in anticipation of litigation (RCW 42.56.290); or 
3.7.9 Records reflecting communications between attorneys and City employees 

where legal advice is sought or received (RCW 5.60.060(2)).  
 

3.8 Broad Requests and Installments 
 
When a request is received that appears to be broad in nature, staff shall request clarification 
from the requestor to ensure that the appropriate records are identified. Clarification shall focus 
on information needed to identify responsive records. Any information provided about the 
purpose of the request shall not be used as a basis for denying the request.  
 
When appropriate, as part of the clarification process, staff may work with the requestor to find 
ways to narrow the request. When a requestor agrees to narrow a request, nothing prevents the 
requestor from later expanding the request back to its original scope.  

 
Large or complex requests may be fulfilled through an installment process as described in this 
policy and procedure. When installments are provided and are not claimed, reviewed, accessed, 
or inspected, the City may postpone compilation of subsequent installments and/or treat the 
request as abandoned and closed. In such cases, staff shall consult with the Public Records Officer 
before postponing compilation of an installment.  

 
4.0 Procedure 

 
4.1 Applicability 
 
This policy and procedure shall apply to all employees of the City of Everett, the Everett Elected 
Officials, and all advisory boards and commissions of the City of Everett. This policy and procedure 
does not apply to responses to legal discovery requests governed by State or Federal Rules of Civil 
Procedure. 

  



RESOLUTION  Page 7 of 15 

4.2 Public Records Officer 
 
The Public Records Officer shall oversee the City's compliance with the Public Records Act and 
shall serve as primary point of contact for public records access. The Public Records Officer shall 
have the following responsibilities:  

 
• Oversee compliance with disclosure laws;  
• Serve as primary point of contact for the public for access to public records;  
• Serve as a single point of contact to coordinate the City’s response when a request 

involves multiple record holders, is broad in scope, or is otherwise complicated to fulfill; 
• Direct the public to appropriate Records Liaisons in possession of particular records;  
• Serve as a resource to staff on topics related to disclosure of public records;  
• Maintain a list of department Records Liaisons;  
• Consult with Records Liaisons and other staff about fulfillment of records requests;  
• Approve forms for use in processing records requests;  
• Disseminate legal updates and policy changes affecting records requests; 
• Collect and analyze relevant information related to the City’s performance of public 

records disclosure; and 
• Maintain the City of Everett Public Records webpage. 

 
Current names and contact information for all Records Liaisons and backups shall be provided by 
City departments to the Public Records Officer. 
 
4.3 Form of Request 
 
It is recommended that public records requests be made in writing using the City’s approved 
submittal form. Requests shall include, at a minimum, the following information:  

 
• An indication that the request is being made for access to a public record pursuant to the 

Public Records Act; 
• The requestor’s name, address, and convenient means of contact such as email address, 

phone number, fax, etc.;  
• The date of the request;  
• A description of the records requested sufficient to identify the records;  
• Whether the requestor wants to inspect records or wants copies. 

 
When paper copies are requested, the requestor should indicate if they wish to be contacted by 
the City if copy costs will exceed twenty dollars ($20.00). 
 
Written requests submitted by mail, email, fax, personal delivery, or other means should include 
a completed request form. When a written request is received that does not include a completed 
request form or the information listed above, staff may ask the requestor to complete and submit 
a form to obtain information needed to identify records or respond effectively. In cases where a 
requestor refuses to submit a request form, staff shall transcribe the request for the requestor, 
ask the requestor to verify in writing that it correctly memorializes the request, and consult with 
the Public Records Officer to ensure an appropriate response. 



RESOLUTION  Page 8 of 15 

Receipt by Staff 
Records requests may be accepted by any department staff person under the general direction of 
the Public Records Officer. Such requests shall be receipt stamped or dated on the face of the 
request and forwarded to the Public Records Officer by electronic means. If the staff person does 
not have the immediate capability to forward the request to the Public Records Officer, the staff 
member shall inform and provide the supervisor or Records Liaison with the request for 
immediate transmittal to the Public Records Officer.  

 
Until the Public Records Officer provides confirmation, the request is the responsibility of the 
department supervisor or Records Liaison.  
 
Unnoticed Requests 
It is the requestor’s obligation to provide the City with fair notice that a Public Records Act request 
has been made. When a requestor does not use an official request form, or makes a request to 
an employee who is not a Records Liaison or the Public Records Officer, or includes a request as 
part of other documents provided to the City for reasons other than making a Public Records Act 
request, the requestor may not be providing fair notice to the City. To ensure fair notice is 
provided, requestors are encouraged to use official forms, make the request through the Clerk’s 
office, and/or take other steps to clearly identify their request. For example, when a request is 
submitted with other documents not related to disclosure of public records, it shall be the 
responsibility of the requestor to provide reasonable notice that a public records request is 
included. This notice may be in the form of an entry on a cover or transmittal sheet. 

 
Lists of Individuals 
Requests for public records that include lists of individuals require a signed certification by the 
requestor that such lists shall not be used for commercial purposes. A certification provision is 
included on the City’s official records request form. The Public Records Officer may do research 
to confirm that the request is not for commercial purposes.  
 
4.4  Personnel and Employment Records  
 
All personnel and employment records must be reviewed by the Human Resources Department 
prior to release.  

 
4.5  Police Records 
 
The Public Records Officer shall transfer all requests for police records received by the City Clerk’s 
Office or other City departments to the Police Department and document the transfer. The Public 
Records Officer will also provide the requestor with information confirming the transfer and 
contact information. The Public Records Officer will log all transferred requests with notation and 
date of transfer.  
 
Once transferred, coordination, tracking, and fulfillment of the request becomes the 
responsibility of the Police Department and no further oversight or action will be required of the 
Public Records Officer. The Police Department shall maintain files and tracking logs for all Police 



RESOLUTION  Page 9 of 15 

requests as required by this policy and procedure. Requests that encompass both Police 
Department records and records in other departments shall be treated as separate requests.  

 
4.6 Municipal Court Records 
 
Although not covered under the Public Records Act or under this policy and procedure, any public 
records request received by Everett Municipal Court for other City department records shall be 
forwarded to the Public Records Officer immediately upon receipt.  

 
4.7 Five (5) Day Response 
 
The five-day (5) response period begins on the business day immediately following receipt of the 
request. Business days do not include weekends or City holidays.  

 
The initial response to the requestor will be made within five (5) business days of receipt of a 
request, shall acknowledge receipt of the request, and may take one of the following forms:  

 
• When possible, the initial response may include the requested records.  
• If the records requested are available via the City website, staff may provide a direct link 

to the requestor to the online documents. This option should not be used if the requestor 
has requested a hard copy of the document, unless the requestor expressly agrees to 
accept the link in lieu of a different format. Appropriate care shall be taken to ensure that 
this option is not mistaken as a refusal to provide the requested record in paper or other 
approved format.  

• An initial response may ask for clarification or refinement of the request if needed to 
identify the record requested.  

• An initial response may indicate that the City does not have records responsive to the 
request.  

• If the City does not have records responsive to the request, the initial response may direct 
the requestor to another agency believed to have the records requested.  

• If the initial response does not include copies of the requested records, the City shall 
provide a reasonable estimate of when the request can be fulfilled. When providing a 
reasonable estimate of time required to fulfill a public records request, the Records 
Liaison may take into account the time required to refine or clarify a request, locate or 
retrieve requested records, redact or withhold exempt records and create associated 
documentation, consult with appropriate staff regarding potential exemptions, and notify 
third parties or other agencies of requests for information of a sensitive nature consistent 
with the provisions of RCW 42.56.540. 

• An initial response may propose fulfilling large or complicated requests on an installment 
basis and provide an estimated time frame for preparation of the first installment.  

• An initial response may be a written denial of the request based on exemptions under 
Washington State Law.  

 
Records Liaisons must respond to the Public Records Officer within two (2) business days as to 
whether the records can be provided within five (5) business days or provide an estimated date 
for fulfillment if to exceed five (5) business days.  



RESOLUTION  Page 10 of 15 

 Records liaisons shall advise department record holders of the five-day response deadline when 
forwarding records requests and consult with record holders when estimating the fulfillment 
date. 

 
 4.8  Locating Responsive Records 
 

Staff shall make a reasonable effort to identify and locate any and all responsive records. When 
identifying records, the Records Liaison or Public Records Officer may ask the requestor for 
clarification or refinement of the request. Such clarifications may be verbal or in writing. In the 
case of verbal clarification, staff involved in the conversation shall document the clarification in 
writing and include the information in the request file. Staff shall not conclude that a request is 
overly broad or does not adequately identify the records requested without attempting to obtain 
clarification from the requestor.  
 
Records Liaisons and staff are not required to create new records in response to a request for 
public records, but shall when deemed feasible, tailor existing informational databases or indexes 
to provide a report responsive to a request that otherwise would not be produced in the normal 
course of business. The determination of the feasibility of creating such reports shall take into 
account the ability to redact or withhold exempt information. When the production of a tailored 
report requires additional resources such as customized programming or fact-specific analysis, or 
would otherwise interfere with other essential functions, the City is not required to produce such 
tailored reports but should instead consult with the requestor.  
 
The City is only required to provide records that exist at the time a request is made. The City 
cannot fulfill “standing” requests or requests for records that may be created at a future date.  
 
Fulfillment of requests shall be processed in the order that provides the timeliest response. 
Requests may be fulfilled in the order of receipt as long as easily fulfilled requests are not 
postponed behind larger or more complicated requests strictly because they were received later.  
 
4.9 Immediate Provision or Inspection of Records “Over the Counter” 
 
Staff may respond immediately to verbal requests for records without the need for completion of 
a written request, entry into a request log, or a written response by the City when all of the 
following conditions exist:  

 
• The records requested are easily accessible to staff ;  
• The requested records do not contain lists of individuals;  
• The requestor is seeking only inspection of records and no copies are provided by the City;  
• Staff can fulfill the request without referring it to Records Liaisons or the Public Records 

Officer; and  
• The request is not for records that are subject to withholding or redaction due to 

disclosure exemptions or confidentiality considerations.  
 

When a request is received in writing and the requested records are provided to the requestor in 
person at the time of the request, a separate written response by staff is not required. In such 



RESOLUTION  Page 11 of 15 

cases, a notation shall be made on or attached to the request listing the records produced, the 
number of copies made, the fees charged, if any, the name of the staff person providing the 
record, and the date of fulfillment. 
 
4.10 Internal Review Prior to Public Inspection 
 
Questions of Exemption 
Record holders and/or departments are responsible for identifying potential exempt records or 
records that contain potentially exempt information. When doubt arises as to whether records or 
portions of records subject to a request are exempt from disclosure, the Records Liaison shall 
consult the Public Records Officer and City Attorney, who may inspect the subject records before 
authorizing the disclosure. Records Liaisons or record holders will be responsible for redacting 
exempt information from departmental records. 

 
Questions of Overly Broad Requests 
If staff is not able to identify with confidence, the records sought by a requestor, or when a 
request appears to be overly broad and unsuccessful attempts have been made to obtain 
clarification from the requestor, staff shall consult with the Public Records Officer who shall 
review the request and provide direction to staff regarding its fulfillment. Staff may also consult 
with the City Attorney on such requests and shall do so in the absence of the Public Records 
Officer. 
 
4.11 Forms of Response 
 
Final responses shall either include copies of the requested records or provide direction to the 
requestor to arrange for inspection of the records (if wanted by the requestor). When the City is 
not able to provide requested records within five (5) business days, the Public Records Officer 
shall provide a written updated estimate to the requestor at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 
Inspection of Responsive Records 
Requestors may choose to inspect requested records prior to City staff making copies and should 
be encouraged to do so, especially when the volume of records is large. Inspection prior to copying 
may serve to narrow the scope of the request and can be useful for identifying and providing the 
appropriate responsive records to requestors. Requestors may make arrangements with the 
Public Records Officer to inspect records on City premises during normal business hours at a 
mutually convenient time. Staff shall make every effort to accommodate reasonable requests for 
appointment times while ensuring the security of public records during inspection.  

 
The Records Liaison fulfilling the request shall provide for the security of records during 
inspection, which shall be supervised by City staff as deemed appropriate. Requestors shall return 
all records inspected to the Records Liaison in the condition and order they were provided. 
Records shall not be altered in any way, rearranged, or removed from folders or removed from 
City premises during inspection. A requestor may flag selected pages for copying but shall not 
alter the original record.  
 



RESOLUTION  Page 12 of 15 

The City reserves the right to make copies of records for inspection rather than provide the 
original records for inspection. The requestor will not be responsible for copy costs if the 
requestor only inspects records.  

 
Electronic Copies 
Records available in electronic form that do not require redaction may be provided to a requestor 
in native format unless the requestor specifically asks that they be provided in paper or other 
form. When requested and deemed feasible, electronic records may be converted from one 
format to another provided such conversion is not unduly burdensome to staff. Should conversion 
be unduly burdensome, conversions fees may be assessed.  
 
Installments 
If appropriate, records requests may be fulfilled in partial installments to provide the fullest 
assistance to requestors. Installments are subject to the same deadlines for claiming and 
inspecting records described in this section. If an installment is not claimed, accessed, reviewed, 
or if arrangements for inspection of an installment are not made prior to 30 calendar days from 
notification of availability, the City may discontinue compiling subsequent installments of the 
same disclosure request. The Public Records Officer may attempt to contact the requestor prior 
to deeming an installment request abandoned, but is not required to make such contact when a 
requestor has been previously warned of this consequence. 
 
Requestor Responsibility 
Requestors shall arrange to inspect, review, access, or claim copies requested records within 30 
calendar days following notification by the City that responsive records are available. The 30 
calendar days begins on the business day immediately following the City’s notice that the records 
are available for inspection or copying and includes weekends and City holidays. The Public 
Records Officer may extend this time period as appropriate to ensure fullest assistance to 
requestors. Requestors must respond to requests for clarification within 30 calendar days of being 
contacted or a request will be deemed abandoned and closed.  

 
If a requestor fails to claim, review, access or arrange for inspection of requested records after 
the expiration of the 30 calendar days, the request shall be deemed abandoned and closed.  

 
Prior to closing the request, the Public Records Officer may attempt to confirm whether the 
requestor still wants the requested records, but is not required to do so. 
 
Multiple Requests by Same Party 
When the same requestor simultaneously submits multiple, separate requests or makes one or 
more additional requests when previous requests are open, staff may queue the requests in the 
order in which they were received. Staff is not required to work on an additional request until the 
initial requests are completed and closed. Requestors are responsible for informing the Public 
Records Officer if they want to reprioritize the fulfillment of their requests.  

  



RESOLUTION  Page 13 of 15 

4.12 Exemption from Disclosure 
 
Withholding or Redaction of Records 
Requested records may be subject to exemption from disclosure under the Public Records Act or 
other statutes. Exempt records shall be withheld or redacted, when necessary, consistent with 
statutory requirements and the withholding or redaction shall be documented for the requestor 
in accordance with the requirements of RCW 42.56.210 and this policy and procedure.  

 
The presence of exempt content does not necessarily exempt an entire record from disclosure. 
Exempt portions of an otherwise disclosable record shall be redacted, when necessary, prior to 
inspection or copying.   

 
Prior to withholding exempt records or redacting portions of records, the Records Liaison shall 
consult with the Public Records Officer and City Attorney. Departments may adopt standard 
procedures for withholding or redacting portions of commonly requested exempt records.  

 
When requested records are redacted, the Records Liaison shall keep a copy of the redacted 
records for the request file. A listing only of the redacted records provided to the requestor is not 
sufficient in accordance with the provisions of the official Washington State records retention 
schedules. 
 
Exemption Log  
When records are withheld or redacted, the requestor shall be informed in writing of the reason 
and be provided the statutory citation supporting the exemption. An exemption log shall be 
prepared for the requestor listing the information withheld and the statutory basis for each 
redaction or record withheld. Individual occurrences of the same redaction may be listed 
generally in the exemption log. For example, an exemption log need not list separately every 
occurrence of the redaction of an individual’s social security number, but may list one time that 
the number has been redacted throughout the record.  

 
Administrative Review of Denial 
A requestor may ask for review of a decision to withhold or redact exempt records by submitting 
a written petition to the Public Records Officer that includes a copy of or detailed description of 
the City’s statement of withholding. The request for review and any relevant information shall be 
forwarded immediately to the City Attorney, who shall consider the petition and either reverse or 
affirm the denial within two days of the City’s receipt of the petition. The City and the requestor 
may mutually agree to a longer period of time for consideration of a petition for review. If the 
withholding or redaction is affirmed, the decision shall be considered the City’s final action for the 
purposes of judicial review. If the decision to withhold or redact is reversed, the Public Records 
Officer shall make the subject records available to the requestor for inspection in accordance with 
the provisions of this policy and procedure.  
 
4.13 Requests Log and Retention 
 
Requests Log 
The Public Records Officer shall maintain a log of all requests and associated documents. 



RESOLUTION  Page 14 of 15 

Records Liaisons shall maintain logs of public records requests received for their departments that 
shall include at a minimum: 

 
• The request tracking number from the Public Records Officer;  
• Name and convenient contact information for the requestor; 
• Date of receipt; 
• Due date of request; 
• A brief description of the requested records; 
• Search efforts performed to acquire records; 
• Description of any clarifications of the request; and 
• A dated notation of the closure of the request.  

 
Requests logs are a public record subject to disclosure and retention in accordance with the 
requirements of the official Washington State records retention schedules and this policy and 
procedure. On a quarterly basis, Records Liaisons shall provide tracking reports to the Public 
Records Officer. 
 
Retention 
Public records requests and associated logs are considered a public record subject to disclosure 
and retention in accordance with the requirements of the Washington State Local Government 
Common Records Retention Schedule.  
 

5.0 Fees  
 

Fees for the provision of responsive records totaling more than ten (10) pages records will be 
based on cost in accordance with RCW 42.56.120. A current fee schedule is available on the City’s 
website and posted in the City Clerk’s Office. The fee schedule will be maintained by the City Clerk 
and updated administratively as costs change.  
 
There is no charge for inspection of records. Fees will be waived if a request is made by a state or 
local agency. Fees will be waived when the number of responsive records totals fewer than ten 
(10) pages of records or ten electronic records emails that do not contain attachments. Such costs 
will not be waived, however, when it appears that the request has been tailored to take advantage 
of this waiver. The City reserves the right to use an outside vendor for large-scale requests and 
odd-sized or larger color copies, and to charge the requestor for those costs.  
 
Copy charges may be remitted by cash, check, money order, MasterCard, or Visa payment. The 
City Clerk’s office shall provide for collection of copy fees if a department is not able to do so. A 
deposit of up to ten percent of the estimated total cost may be required for large requests before 
records are copied. When requested records are provided on an installment basis, fees shall be 
collected for copies prior to provision of the next installment. Failure to pay for an installment 
shall place compilation of subsequent installments on hold or deem the request abandoned and 
closed. 
 
If payment arrangements are not made within 30 calendar days of notice that records are 
available, the entire request may be deemed abandoned and closed. An reasonable  attempt shall 



RESOLUTION  Page 15 of 15 

may be made by the Public Records Officer to contact the requestor prior to deeming a request 
abandoned and closed but is not required to make such contact when a requestor has been 
previously warned of this consequence. 

 
6.0 References 
 

Chapter 42.56 RCW  
Chapter 40.14 RCW  
Chapter 82.12 RCW  
Chapter 44-14 WAC  
Chapter 434-615 WAC  
Washington State Local Government Common Records Retention Schedule  
 

7.0 General duty 
 

It is expressly the purpose of this policy to provide for and promote the health, safety and welfare 
of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or 
group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
policy. It is the specific intent of this policy that no provision nor any term used in this policy is 
intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees. Nothing 
contained in this policy is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any 
liability on the part of the City, or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage 
resulting from any action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the 
enforcement of this policy by its officers, employees or agents. 
 

8.0 Corrections 
 
The City Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to this policy including, but not limited 
to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, numbering, section/subsection 
numbers and any references thereto. 

 
 
 
_________________________________________     
Councilmember introducing resolution 
 
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Council President 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building 
Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034, and repealing Ordinance No. 3915-22 

Council Bill #  
CB 2407-15 

Consideration: Plans & Systems Ordinance 

Project: WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement 

Partner/Supplier: TBD 

                    Location: Water Filter Plant 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3915-22, approved 12/14/22 

Fund: 336 – Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

1st Reading              07/31/24 
Proposed action    08/07/24 
Consent 
3rd Reading             08/14/24            
Ordinance              X 
Public hearing 
 Yes  X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Ordinance 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8809 
 

Email: 
Thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

 

Fiscal summary statement:  

The funding source for this project will be Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for the project is $1,350,000. 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

This project includes the demolition and replacement of an existing 250 square-foot 
building located on the south end of the filter building. A new structure will be 
constructed adjacent to the existing building, which will house two air scour blowers and 
associated electrical and control components.  

The air scour blower system agitates water filtration media during the filter backwash 
process and is a critical component of the filtration system. 

  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance creating a Special Improvement Project entitled “WFP Air Scour 
Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/14854?fileID=84628


 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE creating a special improvement project entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building 

Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034, to accumulate all costs for the improvement and repealing 

Ordinance No. 3915-22. 

 

WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City of Everett is committed to a planned water system infrastructure maintenance 
improvement and replacement program. 

 
B. The City of Everett has identified the need and obtained funds to design and construct certain 

structural improvements to the Water Filter Plant. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 

 

Section 1.  A special improvement project is hereby established as Fund 336, Program 034, entitled 

“WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” to accumulate all costs for the improvement. Ordinance 

No. 3915-22 is hereby repealed. Authorization is hereby given to accumulate costs and distribute 

payments for the improvement project. 

 

Section 2.  Authorization is hereby granted for the “Public Works Director” or “City Engineer” under the 

direction of the Mayor, to assume full and complete responsibility for conducting all tasks and doing all 

things to accomplish the actions authorized in this ordinance. 

 

Section 3.  The sum of $1,350,000 is hereby appropriated to Fund 336, Program 034, “WFP Air Scour 

Blower Building Replacement” as follows: 

 

 A. Estimated Project Costs         $ 1,350,000 

 

 B. Source of Funds 

      Fund 401 – Water/Sewer Utility Fund         $ 1,350,000 

  

 

Section 4.  The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary 

corrections to this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 

references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 



 

ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it 
would have passed all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as 
may be declared invalid. 

Section 6.  The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other 
matter currently pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which 
may be in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety 
and welfare of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular 
class or group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
Ordinance.  It is the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance 
is intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing 
contained in this Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability 
on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any 
action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by 
its officers, employees, or agents. 
 
 
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:     

 



                                                                                                                                                                                
 

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

Council Bill #  
CB 2407-14 

Consideration: Plans & Systems Ordinance 

Project: Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2 

Partner/Supplier:  

                    Location: I-5 bridge from East Grand Avenue to 4th Street SE 

Preceding action:  None 

Fund: 336 - Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
1st Reading            07/24/24 
Proposed Action  07/31/24 
Consent 
Action                    08/07/24 
Ordinance              X 
Public hearing 
 Yes  X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Ordinance 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Souheil Nasr 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-7210 
 

Email: 
snasr@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
   RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The funding source for this project will be Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for design and construction is $2,333,000. 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

This project is for Phase 2 of the Water Main Replacement “Y” project. The project will 
install a new water main to replace an existing water main suspended from I-5 bridge 
that has a high consequence of failure, and recently prone to breaks. The upgrading of 
the water main will ensure reliability of water service for existing customers and future 
development, and that adequate fire flow, per the 2020 Comprehensive Water Plan, is 
provided. The project is scheduled for design in late 2024 and construction in 2025-
2026.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042, to accumulate all costs for the improvement. 
 
WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City of Everett is committed to a planned water main infrastructure replacement program. 
 

B. The City of Everett has identified the need and obtained funds to construct certain improvements 
to aging water mains. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1. A special improvement project is hereby established as Fund 336, Program 042, entitled 
“Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” to accumulate all costs for the improvement. Authorization is 
hereby given to accumulate costs and distribute payments for the improvement project. 
 
Section 2. Authorization is hereby granted for the “Public Works Director” or “City Engineer” under 
the direction of the Mayor, to assume full and complete responsibility for conducting all tasks and doing 
all things to accomplish the actions authorized in this ordinance. 

 
Section 3. The sum of $2,333,000 is hereby appropriated to Fund 336, Program 042, “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” as follows: 
 
 A. Estimated Project Costs                       $2,333,000 
 
 B. Source of Funds 
      Fund 401 – Water/Sewer Utility Fund                 $ 2,333,000 
      Total Funds                    $ 2,333,000 
  
 
Section 4. The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary 
corrections to this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 
references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 
 
Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 



ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 2 
 

phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it 
would have passed all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as 
may be declared invalid. 

Section 6.  The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other 
matter currently pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which 
may be in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety 
and welfare of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular 
class or group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
Ordinance.  It is the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance 
is intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing 
contained in this Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability 
on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any 
action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by 
its officers, employees or agents. 
 
 
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







From:                              Russell Joe <rjoe@mbaks.com>
Sent:                               Friday, August 2, 2024 4:35 PM
To:                                   DL‐Council
Cc:                                   Yorik Stevens‐Wajda
Subject:                          [EXTERNAL] Housing Element Comment Letter
Attachments:                 Housing Element Comments August 2024.pdf
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Dear Everett City Council,
 
Attached please find a Housing Element comment letter from Master Builders of King and Snohomish Counties.
 
Regards,
 
 
Russell Joe
 

Russell Joe
Snohomish County Manager
Master Builders Association of King and Snohomish Counties
 
p 425.460.8213
335 116th Ave. SE  |  Bellevue, WA 98004
mbaks.com

       

 
                                        We believe everyone deserves a place to call home.
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mbaks.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616107191%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=99PMw%2Bs%2FDb5wgEnUu5%2FCrkjrAhSUHWeBJr4sbmRW9Eo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mbaks.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616119646%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=K6dJSKYDag5H3qZmEpDtOo900Zo0YvLKTm5kfMRfOFg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FMasterBuildersAssociation%2F&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616128134%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aHKuEdaidnPMHapC%2F3HT1pAaJ2YcUjiWhhCTsrXit%2Fw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fmbaks&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616134915%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fdfxblXxl11dtS9uR8xWSrQBfJqo9gAsLsc%2FEEM75w4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fmaster-builders-association&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616141427%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BWjqw%2BV%2BplFHwGM2VtomPKQyA2YcBTJyZKmbr%2F%2FpWS4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fmasterbuildersassociation%2F&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Caa3a4988632c40c7e17d08dcb34bbbaf%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638582385616148005%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Aad%2Bs7RvFwAfs8VkxneKgVwrpl9ZxAtlgpJX%2BSE4PrE%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 
August 2, 2024 

Everett City Council 
City of Everett 
2930 Wetmore Ave. 
Everett, WA 98201                   
 
RE: Housing Element Goals and Policies Comment 
 
Dear Everett City Council, 
 
Master Builders Association of King and Snohomish Counties (MBAKS) thanks 
you for the opportunity to comment on the Housing Element of the 2024 
Comprehensive Plan Update (Plan). In addition, the following comments are 
germane to the Planning Commission’s upcoming August 6th discussion.  
 
The Plan serves as the foundation for policies that shape housing choice, supply, 
and affordability. MBAKS appreciates the hard work conducted by City Council, 
Planning Commission, planning officials and staff to update the Plan and 
respectfully submits the following comments for consideration. 
 
Permitting and Regulation 
The Plan is a key component of our role as custodians of the environment. 
Planning for and updating options and opportunities residents have regarding 
where they live, work, and play is a crucial component guiding the city of Everett’s 
future. We urge policymakers to remember new and revised goals and policies 
within the Housing Element often come along with unintended direct, or indirect, 
added costs to provide housing.  
 
We ask that the Council and staff analyze the implementation of the proposal’s 
revisions, new requirements arising from implementation, and potential costs to 
housing or delay in housing permit reviews to determine their impacts on the 
supply and cost of housing. (For example, see permit streamlining in HO-1.2). 
 
MBAKS supports goals and polices contained within the Housing Element that 
recognize the city of Everett’s role in providing attainable housing and a variety of 
housing types for all economic segments of the community and that encourages 
permit reform consistent with new and existing state law (HO-1.1). We include 
comments in the attached appendix, but support adding language to any provision 
that clarifies the goal expressed and does not result in increased permit fees and 
permit timelines.  
 
Housing 
❖      Accessory Dwelling Units: 
MBAKS supports the city of Everett’s overall recognition that ADUs should be one 
of the tools used to address the current housing crisis. Here, Everett recognizes in 
the Implementation Plan the need to “(d)evelop an Accessory Dwelling Unit 
program featuring a standardize (sic) preapproval process to expedite the 
permitting of these projects.”  
 

[EXTERNAL] Housing Element Comment Letter->Housing Element Comments August 2024.pdf



 

 

MBAKS encourages the city to consider preapproved ADU plans that could help reduce the timeline for 
production and expedite the permitting process. There is a critical need to help all community members 
find housing in our rapidly growing region and ADUs are a vital component to addressing this need.  
 
MBAKS would support the following policy changes currently under consideration that could impact 
ADU production that include:  
 

▪ Streamline local review process with clear objective standards (HO-1.2) 
▪ Allowing fee simple ownership through condominiums or a unit lot subdivision process (HO-

1.10) 
▪ Removing off-street parking requirements. (HO-2.9 in Affordable Housing section, but could also 

apply to ADUs?) 
• Allowing lot splitting through an administrative process (HO-1.10 and 1.11) 

 
❖        Missing Middle Housing:  
MBAKS thanks the city of Everett for the inclusion of provisions encouraging middle housing throughout 
this process. In fact, the growth alternative discussion has been shaped by the new middle housing 
laws. We support the hybrid growth alternative currently under consideration and encourage the city to 
engage in a community conversation to discuss utilizing this new tool for maximizing housing options 
and increasing the supply of housing. This will create diverse housing options, access to services and 
transit, and continue to improve the city of Everett’s jobs to housing balance.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Housing Element of the 2024 Comprehensive Plan. 
Please refer to the attached appendix to review our additional comments. MBAKS looks forward to 
engaging with the city of Everett as these policies are further developed and implemented to support 
the goal of creating a sustainable future. We appreciate your hard work and want to serve as a trusted 
resource for you, your staff, and the community. Please reach out with questions or if  you would like 
more information.  
    
Sincerely, 
 

Russell Joe 
 
Russell Joe 
Snohomish County Government Affairs Manager 
Master Builders Association of King and Snohomish Counties 
 
Cc:  Yorik Stevens-Wajda, Planning Director 
 
Attachment A 
  



 

Attachment A to MBAKS letter dated August 2, 2024  

 

 

Attachment A – Housing Element Draft goal and policy comments 

 

2024-2044 HOUSING ELEMENT 
PROPOSED GOALS AND POLICIES 

 
 

 
  

 

HOUSING TYPES AND OPPORTUNITIES   MBAKS Comment 

GOAL HO-1: Encourage development of 
38,558 diverse housing units to meet the 
needs of Everett’s growing community while 
ensuring the city's housing stock remains in 
excellent condition, with most existing homes 
preserved and well-maintained over the next 
20 years. 

  MBAKS supports this goal 
and encourages the city of 
Everett to continue to seek 
ways to diversify its housing 
stock and to keep the 38,558 
new housing units as a 
dynamic goal to plan for in 
the next 20 years and 
beyond. 

Diverse and Sustainable Housing Choices    

Policy HO-1.1 Ensure a diverse housing stock 
throughout the city to meet the needs of all 
individuals and families of differing incomes, 
sizes, arrangements, and cultural 
backgrounds. 
 

  MBAKS supports this policy 
and encourages the city of 
Everett to plan to 
accommodate new 
attainable housing units at all 
income levels and sizes.  

Homeownership    
Policy HO-1.9: Boost homeownership 
opportunities through administrative, 
regulatory, and financial benefits. 

  MBAKS supports this policy. 
One way to boost 
homeownership would be to 
reduce the cost of housing 
by streamlining permitting 
and reducing project 
timelines.  

Policy HO-1.10 Provide for land division into 
small fee simple lots where condominium 
ownership of a housing unit would otherwise 
be allowed. 

  MBAKS supports this policy. 
Increasing the opportunities 
for homeownership by 
raising the supply of housing 
through a quick 
administrative method to 
divide a lot into two fee 
simple parcels should be 
pursued. 

Policy HO-1.11 Allow lot splits to encourage 
homeownership by simplifying regulations and 
streamlining the approval process. 

  See comment above. In 
addition, any changes that 
reduce the administrative 
burden or shorten project 
timelines are encouraged by 
MBAKS. 



 

Attachment A to MBAKS letter dated August 2, 2024  

 

Housing Targets    

Policy HO-1.14 Ensure development 
regulations accommodate the addition of 
38,558 dwelling units in Everett by 2044. 

  MBAKS supports this goal 
and encourages the city of 
Everett to continue to seek 
ways to diversify its housing 
units and to keep planning to 
accommodate for the 
housing needs in 2044 and 
beyond. 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING    
GOAL HO-2: Housing is available to rent at 
prices affordable to the economic segments of 
Everett's population, including 2,900 
emergency shelter beds, 3,700 permanent 
supportive housing apartments, and 19,700 
housing units affordable to very low-income 
households. 

   

Policy HO-2.3 Use streamlined permit 
procedures to expedite affordable housing 
construction and reduce costs to develop. 

  MBAKS would support this 
policy for all housing. Initially 
the expedited process could 
be focused on affordable 
housing. However, the 
lessons learned should be 
applied to housing of all 
types using any newly 
established processes. 
 

Policy HO-2.6 Carefully evaluate the cost and 
supply implications of proposed regulations 
affecting housing development. 

  MBAKS supports this policy. 
As mentioned in the letter 
above, all new regulations or 
changes to current 
regulations do have an 
implicit or explicit cost and 
impact on the overall supply 
of housing.  
 

Policy HO-2.9 Minimize off-street parking 
requirements to reduce housing costs and 
increase affordability 

  While this policy is 
recommended for affordable 
housing, as mentioned in the 
ADU section of the letter 
above, the practices could 
be applied to housing at all 
income levels to reduce the 
overall price of housing in 
the city. 

 


	08072024Plus
	DOE-PGB Outfalls WQ Retrofit-Amendment-EC-CS
	DOE-PGB Outfalls WQ Retrofit-Amendment-EC-SD
	Gary Sinise Foundation Grant_SD
	Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District-Biosolids Storage Agreement-JF-CS
	Mukilteo Water and Wastewater District-Biosolids Storage Agreement-JF-SD
	Quilceda Excavation-Water Main W-Final-DS-CS
	Quilceda Excavation-Water Main W-Final-DS-SD
	Resolution - Update to PRA policy CS
	Resolution- Update to PRA Policy_SD
	Councilmember introducing resolution

	CB 2407-15 WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement-Ordinance-TH-CS
	CB 2407-15 WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement-Ordinance-TH-SD
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-CS
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-SD
	Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it would have passed all portions of this ordin...


	Written Comments Combined_8.7.24



